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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: . . .(gavel). . Aloha and good evening, everyone. The Chair
will call the Planning Committee Meeting to order. Before we begin Chair would just
like to ask that if you have any sound-making devices, if you would put them on their
silent mode at this time so that we will allow everyone an uninterrupted opportunity to
participate tonight. I appreciate that. May I begin by first welcoming you all to our
Planning Committee Meeting tonight. My name is Sol Kaho'ohalahala. I'm the Chair of
the Planning Committee. And I'd like to begin by introducing the, the Committee
Members that are here with us tonight. So I'm gonna begin at my far left, Member
Wayne Nishiki.
.. (pause) . . . yay.
AUDIENCE: ... (Applause and chuckles)...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Just in case, that's all we are.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then next, next to him will be Member Bill Medeiros.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Aloha.
AUDIENCE: ... (Applause)...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Next to Bill will be Member Michael Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aloha. Good evening.
AUDIENCE: ... (Applause)...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And we're happy tonight to have with us, sitting next to me on
my left, Council Chairman, who's a Non-Voting Member of our Committee, but he's
here tonight so, Chair Danny Mateo.
AUDIENCE: ...(Applause)...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then to my right, your District Representative, Member
Gladys Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Hi, everybody. Good evening.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And next to Gladys is Committee Member, Michael Molina.
AUDIENCE: ...(Applause)...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then next to Michael is our Chair of our Budget and
Finance Committee, Member . . . well, Non-Voting Member of our Committee but we
wanna thank him for being here tonight as well, and that's Member Joseph Pontanilla,
thank you.
AUDIENCE: ...(Applause)...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Also with us tonight, on the opposing team, no I'm just
kidding.
AUDIENCE: ...(chuckles)...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: We have across from us, our Staff and the departments that are
here tonight. I wanna begin by introducing in the middle of the table, the Department of
Corporation Counsel, represented by Mr. Michael Hopper, Deputy Corporation Counsel.
Raise your hand, thank you.
AUDIENCE: ...(Applause)...
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then to Michael's right I wanna begin with the, the
Director of Planning, Mr. Jeff Hunt.
AUDIENCE: ... (Applause)...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And next to Mr. Hunt, is Mr. John Summers, who's the
Program Planning Administrator for Long Range Division, John.
AUDIENCE: ... (Applause)...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then next to him would be David Michaelson, who's the
Planner from the Long Range Division as well. David.
AUDIENCE: ... (Applause)...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then our Staff that's with us tonight. I wanna begin with
the person next to, to Michael, and that's David Raatz, who is our Legislative Analyst
and Attorney. David.
AUDIENCE: ...(Applause)...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And next to David would be Clarita Balala, who's our
Committee Secretary. Clarita.
AUDIENCE: ...(Applause)...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. And tonight she's being helped and assisted with
from our Office of Corporation Counsel [sic] , Jo-Ann Sato. Jo-Ann.
AUDIENCE: ... (Applause)...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: We will begin with taking public testimony tonight in a few
moments. If you are wishing to testify, I would ask that you come up here to the table
and sign in. And that would be helpful for us. Testimony will be limited tonight to three
minutes. And so the Chair would request that when you come up to the mic if you would
state your name for the record and who you represent. Okay.

ITEM NO. 2

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE (c.c. No. 07 54)
-

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, tonight we have one item on our agenda and
this is PC-2, which is the General Plan Update. As established by Chapter 2.80B, the
Maui County Code, the first part of the County's decennial General Plan Update is the
Countywide Policy Plan. The Planning Committee finished its work on the document
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late last year, and the full Council is scheduled to act on the bill, adopting the
Countywide Policy Plan, at nine o'clock in the morning, on Tuesday, January 26 th , in the
Council Chambers. The next task of the Planning Committee is to review the draft Maui
Island Plan, the document that follows the Countywide Policy Plan in the General Plan
Update, pursuant to Chapter 2.80B. The Planning Director transmitted the Maui Island
Plan with comments and recommendations from the Maui General Plan Advisory
Committee, GPAC, and the Maui Planning Commission on October 16' 11 of last year. In
addition, the Planning Director submitted a binder last month that is, that is referenced on
tonight's agenda as the draft consolidated Maui Island Plan. Here it is, okay. The
Council needs to enact the Maui Island Plan by ordinance by October 18, 2010. At
tonight's meeting, provides an opportunity for the Department of Planning to give the
Committee an overview of the draft Maui Island Plan for the Makawao, Pukalani, and
Kula community. No legislative actions will be taken tonight, okay. Now Chapter 2.80B
establishes five mandatory components of the Maui Island Plan. They include one, an
island-wide land use strategy; two, a water element; three, a nearshore ecosystem
element; four, an implementation program; and five, milestones. The Planning
Committee is accepting testimony throughout the Maui, throughout Maui County and this
month, with the intention of starting to take votes next month. Before I ask the Planning
Department to present an overview of the draft Maui Island Plan for the Makawao,
Pukalani, and Kula community, I will accept public testimony. So at this time, without
objections, the Committee will now accept public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. If I may, I would like to begin the public testimony
with Mr. David DeLeon. To be followed by Shelley Maddigan.
.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
MR. DeLEON: Good evening, Aloha.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aloha.
MR. DeLEON: Is this on?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah, put it up.
MR. DeLEON. Okay. Thank you for coming out this evening, this wet night. I appreciate your
time and effort. I'm Dave DeLeon, Government Affairs Director of the REALTORS®
Association of Maui. Our Association supports the general smart growth underpinning of
our proposed Maui Island Plan, of this proposed Maui Island Plan. And, and for, for
everybody's sake I'm gonna keep my, my comments general 'cause we're talking about a
general plan. The plan ideal, realistically deals with the level of growth we are expecting
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and it concentrates that growth in urban growth areas. The plan addresses the cost of
supplying the infrastructure for this growth. It emphasizes the impact of the automobile
by creating walkable communities and strives to protect our agricultural lands and open
space while curbing urban sprawl. The following are our point, additional points our
Association would like to make. If sustainability is important, then identifying our
important ag lands is vital. Forty five percent of Maui is zoned Agriculture and time has
shown that it's unrealistic to think that government can or even should attempt to
preserve it all. But we do need to protect our Important Ag Lands. And that cannot be
done until you identify which lands are truly important to the future of our sustainability.
The third largest population center on Maui is Upcountry. That's after Central and South
Maui, and before \Vest Maui. This plan does not truly recognize the significance of this
existing, very rural community. REALTORS® Association of Maui supports the concept
of redefining small lot agricultural lands and how the County addresses these properties.
We believe that some of these existing properties should be transformed or transferred to
low-density Rural zoning because they're actually very poor farm land. We support the
Planning Department's proposal to further define the agricultural district in the three
sub-districts: AG1 prime ag, important ag lands; AG2, small-lot agriculture; and AG3,
pasture. We especially support the concept of an AG2 zone, in which farmers are
encouraged to farm on their small lots but not required. While farming should be
encouraged as an important agricultural activity, history has shown that it cannot be
successfully mandated. Thank you for your determination to complete this important
process.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, David. Members, any questions for the testifier?
MR. DeLEON: Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Seeing none, thank you. Shelley Maddigan, to be followed by
John Wilson.
MS. MADDIGAN: Good evening. Thank you very much for being here.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Just get as close as you can, Ms. Maddigan.
MS. MADDIGAN: Okay. I'm just presenting an idea for possibility of our very controversial
and troubled triangle just up at the end of the street here. I have for a long time felt that
there are so many community uses for that piece of land without major development.
And primarily we now have a bus system on the island. And it could possibly be a good
location for picking up and delivering. Also, we've heard the Haleakala National Park
talk for years about finding ways of controlling the visitors and the traffic. And that
would also be a tremendous location if we had a parking area so that shuttles could come
and pick up the tourists and deliver them at the various hours to the top of the mountain
which would cut down on a lot of accidents and certainly enhance our visitors experience
of the Upcountry area. By creating something along the lines of some of the rest areas on
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the mainland, something like this, a park situation that would give people access and a
positive impression of all the Upcountry communities when they enter. If that was made
into more of a park situation, that would provide even possibly for the community a
central location for a community garden eventually. And working with all the
communities and organizations of Upcountry to support it and to help maintain it so that
it wouldn't become just another County burden of a park system to take care of. Carpool
parking there for a lot of our Upcountry folks it would encourage the use of the bus. If
they could carpool, park there, then get on the bus to go to town and do their errands, or
their, go to, go to work. It just seems like it's a shame. We've got that beautiful spot and
it's, here you are Upcountry, if we could create something beautiful there sort of like our
Five Trees, and also make it so that it's encouraging and sustainability in multiple
directions to help our local residents, getting down the mountain, cutting down on traffic.
Anyway, I just wanted to plant the idea, and perhaps in the future we could work on that.
Thank you very much.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Shelley. Members, any questions? Seeing
none, thank you. John Wilson, to be followed by Pua Gomes.
MR. WILSON: Greetings to the Planning Committee and thank you for coming. I'm
representing, I'm John Wilson representing the Kula...can you hear me?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
MR. WILSON: The Kula Community Association. We have, I have four items I wanna speak
to. I'll just outline them and then go through in more detail. First for me, the most
important is that it's difficult to read the rural boundaries on the map. So we're having
trouble reading the maps and understanding exactly which parcels are included,
especially in the Waiakoa rural service area. We request that parcel lines be added to the
maps. We also see the potential to clean up the rural, residential rural service areas at the
community planning process and request that the Planning be given this, flexibility to be
given to the planning process. So when we do the community plans, that's the time we
should really discuss the rural boundaries. The next item was do not add any urban
growth areas. And I also have a comment on the keeping the Pukalani urban growth
areas as on the map. And fourthly, the Kula Community Association Board strongly
supports ag land use designations as mentioned earlier, especially AG3 which helps to
preserve the land for farming and protected open space. We encourage these
designations to be adopted through ordinance to become meaningful. We also encourage
the adoption through ordinance of review of ag subdivisions with four or more lots and
the requirement that they be built with conservation subdivision design, leaving large
tracks of land. We also recommend the use of conservation sub-district design be
allowed for all rural and ag lands, not just prime or productive lands to preserve open
space. Going back to do not add any urban growth in Kula. This strategy of urban
growth is to provide growth in areas with adequate infrastructure near job centers. High
density developments built without adequate road infrastructure provide safety problems
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with lack of water in Kula, this perpetual problem affects all current residents. Pressing
further demands on our limited water system is unwise. The Kula Ridge Subdivision
proposed to put 116 acres above the Kula Community Center. The Kula Association has
major concerns about the project. And we recently, at our January 5 th meeting, opposed
an urban boundary around that pocket area. A copy of our concerns is included in the
packet. Lastly, keep the urban growth boundaries on the map.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, John. Members, any questions for the
testifier? Okay, seeing none, thank you.
MR. WILSON: Thank you.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: (Speaking from the back of the room) Can you turn the mic up
please.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. When you come up to testify, I know that you're trying
to direct your comments but if you would speak directly and as close as you can into the
mic so that we can pick up your, the best sound for, for everyone. So testifiers, get as
close to the mic as you can, okay. The next testifier is Pua Gomes, to be followed by
Brian . . . Sarasin, Sarasin. Okay.
MS. GOMES: Aloha kakou.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aloha.
MS. GOMES: Okay. My name is Doreen Gomes and I'll be testifying this evening regarding
the Kula Ridge Senior Affordable Housing Project. The Kula Community Association
Board supports the Planning Department's, the GPAC's, the Planning Commissions', and
the community's recommendation not to put urban high density boundaries in Kula.
Over the past two years, the Board of Directors discussed the following concerns on the
Kula Ridge Subdivision. We have also reviewed the draft and final EA and have met
with the applicant on numerous occasions. We greatly appreciate the applicant's
willingness to discuss the project and our concerns. The Kula Community Association
Board recognizes the project's potential affordable housing value. We desire to have a
richly diverse community and this project would provide for some of this balance. We
also look forward to a large 400-plus infusion of new affordable homes in the Hawaiian
Homelands subdivisions of Waiohuli and Keokea. The Association's Board of Directors
list a few concerns: a lack of road, utility, and water infrastructure to support an urban
growth boundary. We ask County Council Members to consider these concerns when
reviewing the Kula Directed Strategy Map, thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Pua. Members, any questions? Seeing
none, thank you. Brian Sarasin, to be followed by Richard Pohle.
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MR. SARASIN: Good, good evening. I'm hoping you can hear me. I'm here to voice my
opinion, Brian Sarasin Sr. I'm a Board Member of the Hui Nohaeha. I'm second Vice
President of the Waihee Community Association. I'm on the Constitution and Bylaws
Committee as well as on the Planning Committee for the Waihee Community
Association. Today I will be speaking as a concerned member of the Waihee community.
I have lived in Waihee since 1978 and this sleepy community has really changed. Not to
the good, I might add. I need to be sure that local community families will be able to still
build the ohana units addition to their dwellings without being penalized by being forced
into situations that discriminate against them, such as forcing them to do SMAs or other
measures that will cost them additional funds. The plan needs to keep Waihee separate
until the Waihee community comes up with their community plan. We've been working
with the old-timers of the Waihee community and the Waihee community itself to work
on our plan that's acceptable to us. As of this point, we've, we've really been eliminated.
So what I'm asking you to do is to work with us and once we complete this plan, to go
ahead and get together so we can fine tune it so that it's a win-win situation for
everybody. The other things that I'm, I'm very, I need to discuss is we've been working
with the Tri-Isle Resource Center. And she's, Jocelyn has been assisting us. We're very
happy with that. What I'm very unhappy about, Lokahi Pacific, 150 units, Waiehu. Did
they come to the Waihee Community Association? Hell no. Living waters, fast track.
Just like Lokahi Pacific. Did they come to the community? No. It's being forced down
our throats by the State and, you know, schools, traffic, water. Water's a big issue.
Where's it coming from? You know it's, it's very, very frustrating. I had something else
and I, I guess I'm, oh, David, Joe Souki. In, Tuesday, the first, January 19, 2010, only
Souki is finding, is hoping to find money for a new project, a second elementary school
in Waihee. Waihee School, he goes on to say is overcrowded and can't be expanded.
We don't need another school in Waihee. We need the developers and whoever else is
gonna come in to take care of that issue. And right now we really don't want, we want
very limited development that the community is happy with. We don't want Sterling
Kim, we don't want Living Waters, we don't want Lokahi Pacific. You know, these fast
tracks, everybody comes in, they bypass the community. The community has no say.
It's like you know what guys, we're coming in, we're building it, and the heck with you.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Water?
MR. SARASIN: Water is a major issue.
MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MR. SARASIN: Where's it coming from? Who's it gonna be taken away from? I thank you
very much for your time.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you Bryan. Members, any questions for the
testifier? Joseph, okay, go ahead.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, thank you for being here. You know you
mentioned about Waihee School and, you know, can you reiterate about what you said
about, you know, not wanting...I, I guess, what I'm hearing is that you don't want an
additional school in Waihee?
MR. SARASIN: Yeah. With, with the present school right now, the traffic problem is so
horrendous, that if you're there at the time school is getting in, in the morning, or getting
out in the afternoon you're looking at a 15, 30, 45 minute wait. The school is
overcrowded. Kids are coming in from all over the island, not from the Waihee
community. If the kids were coming in from the Waihee community, then again like
Lokahi Pacific, like Living Waters, that's putting more kids into the Waihee School
system. It's already overcrowded. When is somebody gonna listen and say we've had
enough? Nobody comes in for, to, to discuss it with us. 'Cause you know are, are you
guys happy with this? Nobody comes until after it's a done deal. You just sneak
everything through. And by the time we get to it, it's like well, gee whiz, it's kind of too
late, we're sorry but you know what, that's the way it is. And we're and the community
is very, very upset.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, thank you for your testimony. And the
reason why I ask you that question is that my daughter teaches at Waihee School. And,
and she knows the overcrowding at the school and you need some relief. But where is
the relief gonna be? That's the question. Thank you.
MR. SARASIN: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Any other questions, Members? Okay. Seeing none, thank
you. Alright. Richard Pohle, to be followed by Walter Hillinger.
MR. POHLE: Hi, I'm Richard Pohle. I am the founder of the Upcountry Meter List
Association. If you wanna go to the website, that is the address of the website. I have
been testifying in front of the Council for about a year and a half about the injustices on,
of the Upcountry Meter List. Recently the Council has made this into an ordinance. So
it's no longer administrative. So now that we have to figure a way to bypass this
ordinance because it is in my opinion immoral for parcels that are zoned properly to be,
have a house on them. They can't put a house on them because they don't have a meter.
Now in the year and a half that I'm, I'm now going to give my assessment of the current
situation of the water meter list. Elmer is convinced that the meter list will be permanent
without some change in approach of the County government. New wells alone will not
suffice. There will be a tendency to wait and hope for a cheap $6,000 meters without
thinking about improvements required for fire protection. Good luck with that. Political
pressure will be required because the political pressure from the water meter "haves",
Maui County has kept water rates artificially low, 11 percent below Oahu and our water
infrastructure has suffered as a result. There are minimal funds for expansion of service,
about half a million a year. So expansion is discouraged. The "haves" are also afraid
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that any new users will affect their own water availability. Thus there is a reluctance to
use resources of the meter list people even for the common good and even though meter
list people would pay extra for their water. The economic downturn has made things
worse. Finally County government is a hopeless bureaucratic morass, and may be other
more devious antidevelopment motives in existence. The inexpensive Upcountry sources
are fully utilized. Pumping water Upcountry is expensive but possible. However there's
plenty of water in Maui valley, which could easily serve Upcountry without detriment to
HC&S. The UMLA conservation meter approach outlined on that website provides a
pathway allowing every parcel to obtain a water meter while avoiding the Department of
Water Supply bureaucracy. Since we consider affordable housing, not farming, to be the
best and highest use of the land, we accept that the meter people should pay more for
water. And the meters will increase their land value, therefore we accept, we also accept
the water infrastructure should conform to fire safety requirements prior to subdivision
approval. We ask only that the County modify the laws that make it impossible for us to
live on our land in a building. Without changes, we long-time residents of the list will
move, sell out, or die while our land sits vacant with minimal value. Our children will be
denied their right for inheritance and will sell when we go. When this system is finally
ended, strangers will enjoy and profit from the land that is rightfully ours.
MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MR. POHLE: Finally, I'll just point out that all scenarios of the current Water Use Development
Plan Draft meet the requirements of all Upcountry meter lists of 3,000 meters. Now of
those 3,000 meters, only 800 meters are actually parcels that don't need to subdivide.
They just want a meter for their parcel. They're paying taxes on it. And they just can't
build a house because they don't have a meter. That's 800 out of the 1,312 applicants
who just want a meter. I think it's unconscionable for this Council to continue this
policy. I've said so many times and I shall continue to say so. Thank you very much.
Don't forget that's my website umla.ws . There's lot of information there about Maui
News articles, et cetera. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
Walter Hillinger, followed by Chris Hart.
MR. HILLINGER: Hello, my, hello, Council. My name is Walter Hillinger, and I'm here to
represent the worthiness of Piiholo South, a senior community. A lot of my, I've lived on
Maui for over 30 years and a lot of my friends have left Maui because they couldn't find
housing as seniors, that they wanted to live in. It's very, very difficult. Myself, I live on
seven acres. I never thought I'd be saying this but I don't know if I wanna take care of
seven acres anymore. So it's very hard as you get older and I don't wanna leave Maui.
And a lot of my friends who left, are finding places to live very similar to what this
development has represented. Now when I lived in Seal Beach, California around 40
years ago, Leisure World was being built. Leisure World was something that Mr. Franks
was alluding to when he wanted to build Piiholo South. Well in, in Seal Beach, it, it
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added so much economic growth to the community having the seniors moving in and
supporting the local businesses, and also I have, I have, I have donated a lot of my time to
social services. And in these social services I've been on boards, and I've been a
volunteer. And I've noticed when I'm volunteering that 50 percent of the volunteers are
seniors. So, therefore, not only do we get people that are gonna help in our social
community. We're gonna get economic help in the community, and I think it's a real
plus for this community. The seniors contribute so much that I just can't see why on
Maui, here is an area that are gonna offer affordable housing or rentals, and also places
that seniors can live. I think it's a win for all, and the County, and the economy of
Upcountry. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Walter. Members, questions?
AUDIENCE: ... (Applause)...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Seeing none, thank you. Chris Hart, to be followed by
Teri Sherrow.
MR. HART: Good evening, Chairman Kaho'ohalahala and Members of the Planning
Committee. Could I call your attention to the letter that I passed out. It's dated January
20' h , and it has four figures attached to it, if you could. This is a request for inclusion of
the Pukalani Triangle or Pukalani Town Center as an urban "in-fill" project within the
Pukalani urban growth boundary. On behalf of our client, Pukalani Associates, LLC, we
are requesting that the 40-acre, remnant Pukalani Triangle or Pukalani Town Center, be
included as an urban "In-fill" project within the Pukalani Urban Growth Boundary. As
the Planning Commission discussed at its meeting on August 24, 2009, "In-fill
Development Strategy" means focusing . . . (change tape, start 1B). . . focusing new
growth inward in existing communities instead of outward onto the islands natural areas,
open spaces, and agricultural lands. I call your attention first to figure number one which
clearly identifies the Haleakala Bypass, Haleakala Highway Bypass and at the top of the
page identifies the Makawao urban area. And you can see that it's clearly separated by
agricultural land, rural and agricultural land and that the Pukalani Triangle is below this
Pukalani bypass edge and obviously suited for inclusion within the Pukalani urban
growth boundary. Also figure two shows a development plan for the, the Pukalani Town
Center. Haleakala Highway, has evolved as the edge of growth, clearly defining the
Pukalani urban growth boundary. In addition, the proposed Pukalani Town Center
establishes a sense of place and will incorporate the following positive development
features and support of the Pukalani Country Town. Now we have worked with the
Makawao Main Street Board, and we are working with them in the refining of our
development plan. We have also been in contact with Eric and Miles Nakashima, and
their Pukalani Superette is right immediately across the street. And they do have plans
and desire to expand their operation. Adaptive reuse of the former corn mill "barns" as
agricultural support with feed, equipment, plant nursery sales would, would be proposed
as part of this project. And in figure number three I ask you to look at...it's a historical
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record of, of turn, of the turn-of-the-century corn mill camp that actually existed within
the Pukalani Triangle. And at that time, there were about 300 residents and the corn mill
camp actually existed in the late 19 th through the early 20 th century. And I remember
going up to the proposed site of the Makawao Fire Station in 1970, and actually driving
up the road and there was still some of the camp remaining. Pukalani Town Center will
be planned and zoned. This is Country Town, with a defined Pukalani "Main Street"
business district along Makawao Avenue and approximately 50 multi-family "senior"
housing units. Business Country Town special uses: a farmers market and support,
public park, and library, and agricultural museum which is a proposal of the Makawao
Main Street Board. The Planning Committee is to be congratulated for its efficient and
diligent work on the Maui Island Directed Growth Plan and the ultimate vision of Maui
island as a community of small towns -MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MR. HART: --surrounded by agriculture and open spaces. Thank you for your consideration of
the Pukalani Town Center as an urban "in-fill" project, within the Pukalani urban growth
boundary. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. ...(inaudible)... any questions for our testifier?
AUDIENCE: ... (Applause)...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Question?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
MR. HART: Yes.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Chris, you know, I'm, I don't know if this is true but I'm
noticing a lot a projects coming in and I don't know if you've made any pitches to
GPAC. And I'm kind of feeling like some of you guys may be short-circuiting and, and
this is my concern.
MR. HART: No. No.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Was this ever made as a representation to GPAC?
MR. HART: Yes, it was. Initially, the maps that actually were created by the Planning
Department, that were transmitted to the General Plan Advisory Committee, would
identify a continuous edge along Haleakala Highway and the bypass and included the
Pukalani Triangle. It was in the context of deliberations by the General Plan Advisory
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Committee that for some reason it was felt that it should be taken out. One of the really
important aspects of this is that, you know, this is the heart of Pukalani. And there is
already a main street at least on the makai side where Pukalani Superette is, but there is
no real main street completed on the mauka side. So it, it somehow, you know, in my
view creates a sense of place and, and basically is typical in-fill development that should
be included within the urban growth boundary. And we also made a presentation, similar
presentation to the Planning Commission. But to date it hasn't been included. And, and
again it was included in the initial maps that were prepared by the Planning Department
and transmitted to the Council. And this also has a history that goes back. It used to be
owned by Maui Land & Pineapple Company. And there was an application actually
initiated with an environmental impact statement, a draft, to the Land Use Commission to
propose it for urbanization. So that's before our client actually purchased it.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Without being rude, you've answered my question. Thank
you.
MR. HART: Thank you very much.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, any other questions? Seeing none, thank you.
MR. HART: Thank you. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Teri Sherrow, followed by Lili Townsend.
MS. SHERROW: Good evening, ladies and gentleman. My name is Teri Shen ow. I've lived in
Maui for 21 years. I'm a community volunteer, a small business owner, and I'm a senior
citizen. I'm here today because I support, and I'm excited about Piiholo South, a
progressive senior community. And Piiholo South provides for an active life with a
fitness center, community gardens, hiking trails, progressive care available, and most of
all, it has its own well with clean water. I would like to see this 60-acre parcel placed
into the General Plan in order for seniors on this island to have choice. The idea of active
retirement living is long past due here on Maui. We need a community where our lives
can expand and not contract, where we can continue to contribute and at the same time
know that we're secure. Many seniors who have thought in the past that they would
remain in their homes, are now realizing that the cost to maintain their properties, taxes,
are eating up their retirement and their savings. Staying in their homes is no longer an
option and the need for County support and care will increase. Piiholo South has offered
10 acres of their 60 acres to provide for the low-cost senior housing to be built and it
should be built now. We have long waiting lists as it is. What's going to happen when
the march of the baby boomers come. It's right behind us. There's no housing or plan
for senior community on this island that will accommodate us. There is certainly no real
choice. We have a crisis on island that if it's not addressed, will just exacerbate. Many
senior professionals on island, teachers, and Council Members, and attorneys have
devoted their time and energy to this island and need place that will give them security
-
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and independence as time moves on. After all their years of work on Maui, what will
Maui give back? Research shows that people who are supported and actively participate
in groups, whether it be family or friends, are happier, live longer, and more productive
lives. It is my desire to age in place, close to my friends, and in my ohana. I've been
here 21 years and I don't wanna have to go to the mainland, to, for my senior years. In
recent months, several of my friends have had to. And although they're happy where
they are now, they really miss the island and they miss their ohana. By placing Piiholo
South on the growth plan, it will be an essential step in the County of Maui
acknowledging the need for senior community for us. And I urge this Committee to do
whatever is in your power to make this happen. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: ...(Applause)...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you. Lili Townsend, followed by Debra Preseault.
MS. TOWNSEND: Good evening and thank you very much for hearing our, our ideas. I'll have
what she's having. That, what, Teri Sherrow has told me is exactly what I had in mind
too. I have been living here for 17 years. I supported my mom in her last ten years of
life and the last two years she was in Kalama Heights which was, we were very fortunate.
She was able to afford that. Although she just had a tiny balcony and felt very hemmed
in and very oppressed by the lack of space. So when I saw the program for Piiholo
South, I just was so excited that there would be an opportunity to have a life that includes
outdoors for a gardener like me to be able to participate in a community garden, for
having hiking trails and places that honor the elders rather than keeping them penned up.
And so I support your concept of making this part of the Maui Island Plan. Thank you so
much.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Lili.
AUDIENCE: ...(Applause)...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, any questions? Okay, seeing none. Debra--I'm not
sure if I'm pronouncing it--Preseault. Yeah.
MS. PRESEAULT: Good evening. My name is Debra Preseault. And I'm here representing
myself and my family. We own and reside in the old Morihara Store. We've lived there
for the past decade. And it's located just down the street from the current Morihara Store
in Waiakoa Town. We've been working with a consultant for the past year to explore the
option to use the store again and restore it as office space. We found out that we're just
two parcels to outside of the rural service area, service center where businesses will be
allowed without a special, special use permit. Given the location and the history of our
property, we feel we can truly benefit the community and feel it should be included inside
the rural service center. Thank you for your consideration.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. Members, questions? Seeing none, thank
you. Meredith Moon, to be followed by Bruce Glen.
MS. MOON: My name is Meredith Moon, and I live, have lived Upcountry for 31 years. We
have a two-acre property on Olinda Road. And besides it being our home, we have a
small lemon farm. And we sell about, between three and four hundred organic lemons to
the health food stores every week. Now I'm 76, and I know the time will come when I
can't pick 400 pounds of lemons ... (chuckles)... each week. And we had both looked at
places on the mainland in thinking about retiring and nothing feels right. And we're very
excited about the possibility of a aging in place senior community Upcountry. And so I
am speaking in favor of Piiholo South. I have one interesting thing, aspect that other
people may not have. Cindy Warner, who's one of the managers of this property had
built a house on each side of me at one time. And so I know the quality both of her
planning and design and the care that she gives to any project. So that's a personal plus
for a plan that would have somebody locally very interested in the aesthetics as well as
the, as, as providing a, a green place. And right now we can walk up Olinda Road and
hike in the forest, but that won't, there will come a time when that may not be possible.
And in looking at these plans, the fact that they're hiking trails, walking trails, all the way
around the property, that there's gardening, that there's swimming available, all of these
things are very positive to me. And so I hope you will support this and allow it to be part
of the General Plan. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: ...(Applause)...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Meredith. Members, any questions for the
testifier? Seeing none. Bruce Glen, followed by Pam English.
MR. GLEN: Good evening. My name is Bruce Glen. I've been a resident, a very thankful
resident of Maui for 31 years. I stopped by to say hello to Wayne Nishiki. I've known
him for a long time. I don't know the last time I saw him was maybe 25 years ago.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Mr., Mr. Glen. Can you speak into the mic -MR. GLEN: Yes.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --so that people can hear you.
MR. GLEN: Okay. Is this better?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes.
MR. GLEN: Okay. I'm here to support Piiholo South. I'm, I'm, it's my birthday today actually.
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AUDIENCE: ... (Applause)...
MR. GLEN: I'm 81 today, and I'm feeling great. And I'm keeping very fit and healthy. And
my partner Meredith just was talking about the fact that sooner or later we're not gonna
be able to do the work to keep our land up. And the, the, takes a lot of work to keep two
acres going in Maui, as you know. And one of the things I've been doing more so
recently, actually is I've been researching and using International Living Magazine as a
resource. And they have done studies of retirement communities all over the world and
they have, they just sent out a recent one about Ecuador, and, and Vilka, Mambre, and
Belize, and so forth, and so forth, all over Central and South America, also Mexico. And
Meredith and I would like to stay on Maui. And but up until the time that I saw this
Piiholo South, frankly I was thinking about moving off of Maui because there wasn't any
place that would give us the opportunity of a small home, to downsize. And it has
something that we could hold, keep up, without a tremendous expense and without
tremendous effort. But an enjoyable place, and this, this place appears to me to be really
well, well laid out. And I'd like to second, I guess five or six other people's suggestion
that the County Council seriously consider including this in the plan. I think it would be
a wonderful, wonderful thing for the seniors on Maui, which, and I, is a necessary thing
for the seniors as far as I'm concerned. Thank you very much.
AUDIENCE: ...(Applause)...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Bruce. Happy birthday again. Any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. I get one. No, no not for him. Thank you,
Chairman. This is for--you know, I forgot to raise my hand--Debra Preseault. Because
she mentioned about the Morihara Store and the inclusion of two properties.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Debra, would you come back to the mic.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: The only thing that, you know we taking all this
information but, you know, some of 'em are telling us they wanna include certain things.
You know if you had written testimony to, to provide us in regards to the area that you're
talking about because we really don't know, other than it's Morihara Store.
MS. PRESEAULT: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: You know something like a tax map key of some, some
kind so that at least we get a fairly good idea, you know, as far as the location that you
talking about.
MS. PRESEAULT: I would love to submit that.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
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MS. PRESEAULT: Who do I submit it to?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: You can submit it to the Planning Committee, and I'm Chair.
Just so you know that this is really just the first pass and we're not gonna be doing any
decision-making as I announced, but as we deliberate on the specific areas, you wanna be
sure that you have information provided to the Committee before or prior to us getting to
your specific area in the terms of decision-making. So, so the information that the,
Member Pontanilla is asking for should be something that should come as soon as you
can to help us in, in terms of our deliberation time.
MS. PRESEAULT: Okay. Thank you, I will do that.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
MS. PRESEAULT: Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. Pam English, followed by Darlene
Valencia.
MS. ENGLISH: Aloha. Good to see you all again today. My name is Pam English, with Maui
Land & Pineapple Company. Thank you for the continued opportunity to give testimony
on the Maui Island Plan. Today we're focusing on the Upcountry area of the plan. And
I'd like to say a few words about the Haliimaile development area that Maui Land &
Pineapple has been discussing with the Upcountry community since our week-long
charrettes in March of 2006. First, my understanding is that the future supply numbers
currently in the plan make the assumption that 100 percent of currently entitled and
un-built product will be built out to meet the future demand. This is unlikely. Some of
these entitlements have been on the books for years. Quite a few of these in the
Upcountry area are ag lots, which not only cost more to develop, they create sprawl. If
the projection was even a bit more realistic, at say perhaps 80 percent build out, that
would add 4,700 units to the island demand. Supplying for growth in the Upcountry area
by building out ag lots will create wider discrepancies between population and services.
And these ag lots will not provide for new schools nor community-based services such as
gas and grocery. Second, people wanna live Upcountry. The Hawaii Housing Policy
study of 2006 by SMS, reported that 47 percent of persons would like, that would like
new housing on Maui, would prefer to live Upcountry. Third, affordable housing. We
have an affordable housing dilemma. How do we provide for Upcountry demand in an
affordable manner? The Maui Island Plan goals aspire to bring compact, walkable
communities, near schools and services like grocery and gas. Expecting this demand to
be met with ag lot build-out will not meet the, those goals and will not be affordable. The
SMS Housing Study also pointed out that the greatest opportunities for developing large
numbers of housing units at affordable prices are usually located some distance from
population and job centers on all islands. This is not the mainland where perfect
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neo-traditional development patterns will be found. It's a ten-minute drive to Kahului
from Haliimaile--that's not unreasonable--or to Kihei on the new Kihei-Upcountry
Highway. If we're not given the opportunity to create affordable housing for these
markets, our crisis will, will worsen. We've seen wide support for our well-planned,
affordable, and energy-efficient proposal in Haliimaile. Compact development, phased
over time, in a well planned, long-range vision can provide for the future families of the
Upcountry region. Please consider the inclusion of the Haliimaile expansion area in the
Country Town growth boundary so we may begin work on supplying the demands of this
market. The entitle, the, the process of entitlements, at best, will take ten years. Starting
with the EIS, about three years. State zoning, a couple more. And then County zoning at
which point we then begin the subdivision process. We won't be working on this
affordable project if it's not on the map. The UGB does not guarantee entitlements. It
just gives us the chance to bring ideas forward for public scrutiny. The Haliimaile
concept is a good plan worthy of the opportunity to begin working with the community
for the future of Upcountry. Mahalo.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Pam. Members, questions? Okay. Seeing
none, thank you. Darlene Valencia, followed by David Valencia.
MS. VALENCIA: Aloha, Council. My name is Darlene Valencia. I would like to air some
concerns regarding urban growth, Makawao and Pukalani area - Tax map key 2-3-09 for
parcels 07 and 64. Change the urban growth designation back to agricultural.
Discourage development on these parcels. Why? I live in front of the proposed project,
and many of my neighbors share the same point of view. Now I'm not sure if Project
Kauhalani, wait, excuse me, Kauhale Lani is still a go or not. But now is the time to
discourage development. Let me keep you up to speed, the proposed project on these
parcels by Pukalani Associates, oh quite a deceiving name. They're a mainland firm not
a local identity as the name implies. This mainland firm with a mainland concept, wants
to put million-dollar, luxury-type homes and make it a high density area, 170 homes or
so. The surrounding area is the oldest subdivision in Pukalani. And this new project will
not fit into our low-density, local environment. In other words, the shoe doesn't fit. This
project doesn't fit into our quiet, low-key neighborhood. And the beautiful scenery views
will also be obstructed by this or any subdivision. Not to mention, there is more demand
for affordable housing than luxury homes. So it is obvious they are doing this for profit
for their stockholders on the mainland and not considering the local style of living. Other
factors, traffic. It's bad. Every morning, trying to get out of my street, Ikea Place and
others, Aeloa, Alea, Alohi, it's very congested with blind spots which makes it even
worse. In the back of the proposed project, lolani Street, and neighboring streets will
significantly be affected by wanting to open that up for through traffic. Adding to school
traffic, children, pedestrians, cars going to work. Can you imagine 170 homes times two
cars equals 340 more cars adding to our daily congestion? This firm claims that they will
only open up the lolani Street for emergencies only. What shibai, lies. Who and how
will this be regulated, monitored? I guess some companies will say anything to get what
they want. Next, water. This proposed project has a well agreement with Maui Land &
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Pineapple Company. Currently this well is not pumping enough water as expected or
predicted for the County of Maui to get its share and provide for several proposed
projects. Please do not any other developer, please do not allow any other developer to
have this type of agreement with the County for water projects and be burdened and
committed to give water to development in this fashion. Please remember the existing
local residents who are waiting for their water meters. Do you think this is fair for the
future of our island? Since this project it has made us become more aware of what lies
ahead . . . considering any other kind of subdivision. We're taking action now to please
consider our pleas and restore the agricultural designation and eliminate this area for
future growth. Just because it is included in the original draft, doesn't mean it should fit
it in or has to be developed. It's a plan, not a given. Please hear our pleas.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Darlene. Questions? Go ahead, Member
Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And thank you, Ms. Valencia for being here
tonight. This particular area is down below -MS. VALENCIA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --where the pineapple fields are now?
MS. VALENCIA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So that would be above the ditch? Or below the ditch?
MS. VALENCIA: Above.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Above the ditch in that, in that vacant area that they can...
MS. VALENCIA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And that's where the 170 homes would be planned to be
built.
MS. VALENCIA: Supposedly, I don't know if it's still a go or not, but yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Darlene, did you submit any testimony in writing?
MS. VALENCIA: Tonight?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes.
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MS. VALENCIA: No I did not.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Are you, is it, are you able to do so?
MS. VALENCIA: Sure.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. It would be helpful for the Committee.
MS. VALENCIA: Sure.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Other questions? Okay, okay. Thank you very much.
David Valencia -AUDIENCE: ... (Applause)...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --followed by Leonard Hasse.
MR. VALENCIA: Aloha. My name is David Valencia, and yes I am related to Darlene who
just spoke. I live in Ikea Place in Pukalani. Our home's on the boundary of the
Makawao/Pukalani urban area growth designation. As example, a proposed subdivision
called Kauhale Lani is being considered for approval. The proposed project is a very
dense development for the parcels 07 and 64 in relation to the existing neighborhood.
The section where I live was the first development in the area and the homes have spaces,
you know, had large spaces between them and some of them have allowances or
conveyances for subsistence living like we can have horses, pigs, and we can farm the
land. The developer, Pukalani Associates is a mainland firm and is not familiar with our
local way of life. The project has not taken into consideration certain aspects of our
environment up here nor does it consider the impact the project would have on our
existing infrastructure. The project does not have a solid water source, and goes about
making a deal with the County for this element. The Maui Island Plan should take into
consideration the existing nature of our Upcountry living arrangements and not destroy
the local environment. It seems to me the Maui Island Plan is more for developers than
for the people. Why does our County approve subdivisions when it does not have water
meters already assigned to the parcels? The Maui Island Plan does not tie in all the
necessary requirements to build homes. It might be informative to know where to build.
But how does it address the concerns of the existing situation and the desires of the local
neighbors. Why are we rushing to assign these areas for development when
circumstances on the ground can change at any time? Why are we changing the lifestyle
of Upcountry living when there are plenty of other areas that need build-out like near the
larger towns of Kahului or the Kihei areas. Revert urban growth areas to agriculture, to
maintain our way of life and for our children. Who says we have to develop Upcountry
when it is obvious that we have a hard time now with water, traffic, and you know the
requirements of our school for our children. The Maui Island Plan should be limited in
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scope and address current circumstances such as not having enough water for our homes
now. Let us not rush or rubber stamp this plan even though we know it's a 20-year plan.
And as the saying goes, let's keep the country, country. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, David. Members, questions? Okay, seeing
none, thank you. Leonard Hasse, followed by James Sato.
MR. HASSE: Good evening. My name is Leonard Hasse. I'm speaking on behalf of myself. I
used to be the President of the Olinda Community Association. I've talked to you all
before. The Piiholo South project was presented to the Olinda Community Association
about a year ago, and the, the attendees raised two issues that they're very concerned
about. One, we feel that if that area's going to be developed, a retirement community is
ideal. But the concern was the traffic at the intersection in the middle of Makawao Town.
If that problem that currently exists in Makawao Town is not resolved, we're gonna be
dumping the residents from the, the South, onto Piiholo Road that's already backed up
and make an additional congestion to that intersection. So the people who attended the
meeting suggested that, that issue be addressed before the development be built. Piiholo
South took care of the water problem. They gonna have their own well, that was a
concern. That issue has been resolved. And we wanna commend them for taking that
issue head on and solving the problem. The other big issue that the community had was
that if the development is approved as a retirement community, the concern is that the
developers don't change the concept and dump a bunch of single-family homes in the
area to change the whole scope and nature of the community. A retirement community is
ideal for our area, if any kind of construction's gonna take place, but the infrastructure
problem is one that needs to be addressed today so that this project can be . . . (change
tape, start 2A). . . put on a fast track to solve the problems and issues raised by a lot of
the presenters tonight. I solicit your support in trying to get the rest of the County
departments to do, to do their part to solve the existing problems so this development can
take place. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Mr. Hasse. Questions, Members? Okay. Member
Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Mr. Hasse. Thank you very much for being here.
I'm sorry but, you know, we had that horrible noise going on behind and I did not hear
what you had to say about the traffic issue. Would you please repeat that?
MR. HASSE: Currently residents coming off of Piiholo Road and Olinda Road get jammed up
at least two blocks long at the intersection in the middle of Makawao Town. We have
one crossroad, one going up the hill, and the other one on Makawao Avenue going
across. It's a four-way stop. People wait, it's been a problem for a number of years. As
many as three years ago we suggested that the County look at putting a policeman there
during rush hour traffic to take, take care of the traffic coming from Haiku going down to
Kahului, going up to the schools. That suggestion was not taken. They said the four-way
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stop will suffice. That anytime in morning we go, come down Piiholo Road, you take a
left to go in toward Kahului, and you stop. And it takes you about a half, well 15 minutes
to 30 minutes to get through the intersection. That problem needs to be resolved today
before you put another community up there or another development.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Thank you very much. It's been my concern so I was very
interested in your meeting and what your thoughts were.
MR. HASSE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Other questions, Members? Okay, Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good evening, Leonard, it's good to see you again and thank
you for all your efforts as the past president of the Olinda Community Association.
MR. HASSE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And, when you were president of the Association, was there
ever a, I guess an informal traffic count done on Piiholo Road during the rush hours?
You mentioned 15 to 30 minutes back up?
MR. HASSE: I believe there was. I'm not privy to the results of the, the study but they said that
they were looking at changing, putting a stoplight in or something but nothing ever
happened. The Public Works Department and the Police Department said that they
couldn't afford to put a policeman there and that the four-way stop should take care of the
traffic. But it doesn't. If, if you ever, well you live in Makawao, Mike. You come down
sometime and try to get through the intersection.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. HASSE: And it's during rush hour, school days it's a real bear.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh. Okay. Alright, thank you. And when the time
comes we'll try and get that information -MR. HASSE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --from the departments.
MR. HASSE: And I wanna thank the Council for supporting this on fixing Piiholo Road.
Haven't had any work done since then but thank you.
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AUDIENCE: ... (chuckles)...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. Mr. James Sato, followed by Robin, I think it's
Pilus.
MR. SATO: Good evening. My name is James Sato and I know all of you here.
AUDIENCE: ... (chuckles)...
MR. SATO: I'd like to thank all of you for being here and listening to us. ... (chuckles)... I'm a
resident of Pukalani, lower Pukalani. The Valencias just mentioned where the places,
we're neighbors. Okay. Like I said, my name is James Sato, resident of the lower
Pukalani. I was committed to speak on two occasions of the Land Use Commission
Meeting held, held at Maui Prince Hotel last year. I wasn't suppose to speak for the
second time but they permitted me to speak anyway. Because my point was very strong.
One of my objective was water, and that it's inadequate. I may not stand before all of
you Council Members, loud enough to put my, my valid concerns who are residents in
our area. I think it's very short. I'm a resident of Pukalani for more than 60 years. I, I
think I'm one of the oldest member over here. When not to many homes were built. Can
you imagine the many, many times that we had water shortage? I know all of you can
understand this that often times, the County had to bring their tanker up to get water from
their tanker. Shut your pipe now, our water is from the tanker. We gotta cook. We gotta
use the bathroom. We have to wash and all that. ... (inaudible)... that. We suffered very,
very much so I was opposed of the Pukalani Committee Association on several
occasions. And can you imagine what I went through too? Being the president, I had to
go do communication with the Council Members at that time. But being strong and big, I
took many whatchacall slack from the community people. Approving this land from
agricultural to urban without water, which is so vital, I'm definitely and negatively
against. Being the President of the Pukalani Community Association like I said on
numerous occasion. I can go on and on and talk ...(inaudible)... so I'd like to ask the
Council Member to ask yourself the good judgment for all us all concerned who here in
Pukalani. Can you imagine Maui Land & Pine dug a well somewhere, up in the
mountain somewhere? And there I understand the department's water, part of that water
to be used by the developer who go, eventually going buy property, and have property to
sell to the people.
MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MR. SATO: But when they found out, the water that they pumped up was inadequate. What
happened, in the meantime Maui Land & Pine went out of business. I say this that any,
any company or any developer that's gonna develop land that they should dig a well
themselves. Well, like I said, I'm gonna keep it short and I'd like to thank all of you for
listening to us. Thank you very, very much.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Mr. Sato.
MR. SATO: Any questions?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Any questions, Members? None, thank you. Robin, is it
Pilus?
MS. PILUS: Yes.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Followed by Darnella Reeves.
MS. PILUS: Good evening, Council Members. I also am gonna urge the Council to put Piiholo
South on the urban growth boundary. In my professional life I work a lot with the seniors
on the island. I work with the Department of Health, with a pilot project where we
actually go out and deliver home care services to the seniors on the island, remotely. So
we go out and with Telecare equipment, we help the seniors to talk to their doctors and
talk to their nurses remotely. One of the fantastic things about this project is it does offer
a lot of medical opportunities and dental opportunities for the seniors in addition to all the
fine aesthetic kinds of things that we've heard about tonight, the walking trails, the
swimming pools. All these things really create a holistic, healthy environment for our
seniors to age. And it's a very unique concept, something that Maui really doesn't have
and the ability to access the beautiful Upcountry out of doors would be positive for our
seniors. And I think you know that there's like a seven-year waiting list for the
Upcountry Hale Mahaolu residence up here. So there's a great need and there's gonna be
additional aging numbers. And I think that this is a very timely project. I think it would
be a very appropriate project for the use, and I think it's a blessing that the, the water
would be there and would be able to be used for our kupuna as well. So I'd would really
like to urge you folks to include this project in the urban growth boundaries and certainly
solve any of the issues so that the entire community can embrace this project and
hopefully we'll all be neighbors there. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Robin. Members, questions? Okay. Seeing none,
thank you. Darnella Reeves, to be followed by Ellen Reeves.
MS. E. REEVES: Darnella had to leave.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Is there an Ellen Reeves? Okay, go ahead.
MS. REEVES: Hello, my name is, my name is Ellen Reeves and I live on Ikea Place. And I'm,
want to reiterate what James Sato, and David and Darlene Valencia said about changing
the designation of parcels 7 and 64, tax map key 2-3-09. And change that from urban
back to agricultural. It can't be built on because as James said, there isn't any water and
the traffic is very bad. And as I say, I live on Ikea Place. I take my grandchildren to
Pukalani Elementary School and Kalama School. The traffic is terrible in both, both
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schools. And there isn't going to be enough room for more children. Even if they build,
I mean there's no water. And, so I did just want to reiterate what my neighbors have
already testified to. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Ellen. Members, questions? Okay. Seeing none,
thank you.
AUDIENCE: ...(Applause)...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Sherman DePonte, followed by Will Spence.
MR. DePONTE: I think my three minutes starts ...(inaudible)...
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (chuckles)...
MR. DePONTE: Hi, Members. I'm Sherman DePonte and I live up in Kula. I'm very
concerned with what's going on in the neighborhood. Like last night I'm here to promote
basically the senior housing in Makawao. I, usually I have a couple people before me to
get ready and it's kind of like I'm, this one kind of surprised me. ...(inaudible)... good at
this. I wanted to, first off I wanna thank all of you for working on the water problems
that we have. I mean a lot of, a lot of effort, a lot of years into it. And I really appreciate
it and I'm sure the people will appreciate it in the end with new, with the rules for us and
for the board, I mean the Department to follow. And that's what we push for an I'm very
happy for that. Also happy for the work on the community plan and how it's going.
And, you know, it's moving forward. Things are happening and it's happening with this
Council. And it's happening with, with Jeff Hunt here, working. In any case, mine is,
Piiholo South has a lot of good things to offer like I mentioned last night and I wanna
reiterate it to you, to ya'll is that we get old and we pay taxes. We die. That's two
things, taxes and dying, we, we're gonna have. So when a, when a developer comes in
and puts in and thinks the foresight for the seniors I think is very important and it's good
for the community. As far as the traffic problem in Makawao Town at, at the
intersection, there's always been. I've, I've seen it. I've been it, a little boy and it was
there. And, and we can have a right turn only at the bottom of Piiholo if that'll be eight
o'clock till whenever. And I don't think seniors are gonna be taking their children to
school. They've, they've passed that. So I think the seniors are gonna be doing their
rituals in the morning. And it's just a beautiful thing. The other thing on, on that was I
called it dying with dignity. And being up, Upcountry you have the fresh air where you
lived, where you enjoyed your life. That's where you pass on. I think and for me the
foresight on that is just, wow. That is, that is the way to go. We've, we've been, why I
come up here, why I'm talking and why I get excited and, and about it was basically
because there's a vocal minority making rules for the silent majority. And we the people
here, and I encourage all of you to come up and talk even if you're in the crowd and just
going hmm I don't wanna talk, I don't wanna say anything. The Council is here to listen
to us. It's about time we step forward and start talking. And so they can listen and they
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can see exactly what we the community want, not just what one association or couple
members of that association want. And with Wayne Nishiki we proved it, that sometimes
we can do it. And we did it when they tried to steal our zoning at one time, quietly, and
we proved it in 2000, that it can be, that we're, we're the silent majority.
MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MR. DEPONTE: But we made it. So I'm encouraging everyone of you to, you know, come up
and speak and say give your voice, because if you don't they won't hear you, and we
won't hear you. And they'll be just be again, the vocal minority is taking over on us.
Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Shell tan. Members, questions? Okay,
seeing none, thank you. Will Spence, to be followed by Ernest Rezents.
AUDIENCE: ... (Applause)...
MR. SPENCE: Good evening, Mr. Chairman, Members. I was actually planning on just
listening tonight but one of my clients got up, Debra Preseault, who owns the old
Morihara Store, so I just wanted to say we will get you the information. Eventually what
they were going to do was come in for a Special Use and Conditional Use to just do some
offices. It's a nice, low-key kind of thing. They are outside right now, the service, the
rural service boundary. I have talked with Planning Department a little bit about that
particular map. I do think it needs some adjusting. And that's not to say anything about
Planning. They've, they've taken on a huge task and have, I think have done a pretty
good job. But we will get you that information. So the other thing I, I would like to give
a little plug for Piiholo South, not because I'm so familiar with the project, but because of
my own experience with my mother and my stepfather living in more of a retirement
community. And just the, you know, situated in Southern California, whole different
thing than Maui of course, but just the relationships between all of those seniors, the
friendships. You know, they went golfing together, they played bridge together. They
did so many things together. It was such a wonderful environment to be able to provide
that, you know, for them. If we can provide that, you know, I'm a, I'm a future senior
myself, you know.
AUDIENCE: ... (chuckles)...
MR. SPENCE: I'm gonna, you know, I'm gonna look forward to that kind of thing, you know,
where I can hang with my friends and, you know, maybe we'll play cribbage instead of
bridge but you know, who knows.
AUDIENCE: ...(chuckles)...
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MR. SPENCE: So no, there, there is going to be a need on this island as the baby boomers, you
know, get older. There is really going to be a need to provide for the seniors. So I would
encourage this kind of thing. Any questions?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Will. Members, any questions? Seeing none,
thank you.
MR. SPENCE: Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Ernest Rezents, to be followed by Dick Mayer. Mr. Mayer is
the last testifier that has signed up.
MR. REZENTS: Good evening. And welcome to Upcountry Maui. I wasn't anticipating to
speak this evening but I have lived on Maui long enough to, I think Gladys, to have been
here longer than you have.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: ... (chuckles)... Little bit.
MR. REZENTS: And little bit, and longer than anybody else in the audience. And I've lived on
Makawao Avenue long enough to remember a sign on the utility pole, horses keep off the
sidewalk, as if they could read.
AUDIENCE: ...(chuckles)...
MR. REZENTS: So we have experienced the traffic increase on Makawao Avenue. And we
know that's what it's all about. Now I am sorry I was not aware of this Piiholo South,
but we'll look into it and I agree with some of the other speakers as you get old, it's very
difficult to take care of a large home with a half an acre with many, many trees. It takes a
lot of time. So that sounds like an ideal retirement community, one, but when you
consider that, make sure the wells that have been dug can supply them the water that they
need. Two, the traffic is a horrendous problem on Makawao Avenue. And I have spoken
a time or two about this issue and have written to people about this. And I know that the
retired people will not be taking kids to school; however, they will have cars and will
eventually get on the highway and add to the congestion. So something needs to be done
let's say from Piiholo, or from Makawao Town, or something like that, that bypasses
going across or next to my house. By maybe go down Baldwin Avenue or through some
pastures there, and eventually get to Baldwin Avenue and then go to Haliimaile and they
can go on down to Kahului or wherever they're going. By going through Makawao
Town and on towards Pukalani is a nightmare. And I have experienced the growth. I'd
go on sabbatical, come back, and there's another developer up the street from us. And
this just adds to the congestion and the danger. So I'm for Piiholo South and may move
into it someday; however, water and traffic are the two concerns. And, Gladys, you're
welcome to live next door to me.
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AUDIENCE: ... (chuckles)...
MR. REZENTS: Thank you very, very much.
CHAIR KAHUOHALAHALA: Thank you, Ernest.
AUDIENCE: ... (Applause)...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, questions? Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Mr. Rezents, I don't think our ages are that much different
anymore.
MR. REZENTS: I know ... (inaudible)...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm officially a senior now.
MR. REZENTS: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You know, I'm looking at big 7-0 this year.
MR. REZENTS: Oh, I'm way ahead of you; I made 15 the other day.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. So -MR. REZENTS: I'm, I'm 78.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --ahh, terrific, congratulations. Good genes, of course, you know
we're related.
MR. REZENTS: ... (chuckles)...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But, but anyway, Mr. Rezents I wanna thank you for your
objective comments. You know, I too worked with senior citizens for most of my life
and I'm very much aware of the tsunami of aging. And I'm very interested in Piiholo
South as an another alternative to taking care of seniors and where we go. You know,
I've dealt with an aging mother who refused to move into senior housing. She wanted to
live in her own home. And so this, this question of how do we deal with seniors is really
complicated. And I think we need all the options we can get. But thank you for kind of
validating the little concern I have about the traffic in, in Upcountry right in that area that
you're talking about. You know, I've been there sometimes in the morning or in the
afternoon when the traffic gets backed up all the way to the horse center. And so I'm
looking for anybody and I know you've lived here for a long time and you're very
intelligent, you have good ideas. Help us think of a way to do something about that
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traffic in Makawao Town, and I'm gonna ask the same question to Ms. Perreira if she
would come up and, and speak. Because I think this is something our community needs
to work on together. We need to have an idea of how to divert traffic from Makawao
Town so I'm asking you and I'm asking everybody, please if you can come up with an
idea, let us know so that we can work on it. Because we have to do something. You
know, traffic in Makawao Town with those cars backing into Baldwin Avenue, you
know, from the stores, it's kind of dangerous. It's really less than one lane many times if
you're going up and down. Any, any comments, any thoughts?
MR. REZENTS: Yes, I do. For years they have talked about a road that bypasses Makawao all
together. And that would be the lower Makawao Town. But then they had pineapple
there and so they couldn't get the land I suppose. But that has been in the books for a
very, very long time. Now some way you need to get from Kokomo Road or something
like that and get her down and then across through the pineapple field. I can see just
getting on to Baldwin Avenue through Haliimaile and then out on Haleakala Highway.
But to get to Haliimaile is a problem. Now there are pastures from Piiholo, that's where
your cousins live.
AUDIENCE: ... (chuckles)...
MR. REZENTS: And somehow maybe there's some pasture they can go right through and get
on down there but you need to think of land acquisition. Because you gotta think about
their own traffic congestion on Makawao Avenue and Makawao Town. So that's gotta
be priority to approving Piiholo South. But that sounds like a great retirement
community. If you can, you know, I would like to live there. I like Upcountry, Maui.
But you gotta think of it and look at maybe even land acquisition. Put money in the
budget to do this because we do need more senior housing Upcountry, for instance.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You know as we talk about this General Plan and growth and we
talked a lot during the process about transit corridors. You know, this is not anything
fancy or you know, it's not sexy. You know, transit corridor, but we need another road
around Makawao. We just cannot continue to do what -MR. REZENTS: Exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --we're doing.
MR. REZENTS: Exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So -MR. REZENTS: (inaudible)... on track.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --so anyway.
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AUDIENCE: ... (Applause)...
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Please, I welcome any input that anyone can give us and I'll take
it to where it needs to go. Thank you. Thanks, Ernie.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, any other questions? Okay. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Rezents. And you know as a long-time
Makawao resident, and here you carry a lot of history.
MR. REZENTS: I've known your family for many years.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you. You know and for bringing up the traffic issue
and mentioning to those who have not lived in Makawao for a long time about the traffic
concerns. It's existed even before I was on the Council. Would you be willing during
the Budget session to come out and express that concerns to the Member as well because
it will be a lot of money. So I don't know what our resources are but for as, as Member
Baisa has really reiterated the need for addressing the traffic issue. It's been suggested to
me about the purchase of Maui Pine land to provide an additional turn lane -MR. REZENTS: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --because of the backup as mentioned by, by Member Baisa.
That has been considered as part of the problem. But again you see all those telephone
poles, the cost of land, the removal, so it will be expensive and if you wanna come out
and share your concerns with our Budget Chairman and the Budget Committee during the
session, you know it would be more than ..(inaudible)...-MR. REZENTS: I would be very happy to do so.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. REZENTS: But talking about money, they got ten million dollars from Federal funds et
cetera, to cockroach land from my property, to widen Makawao Avenue -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh, uh-huh.
MR. REZENTS: --to make a left hand turn, -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. REZENTS: --a bike lane, sidewalks on both sides, and taking not nine feet but 23 feet, up
to my vegetable garden which I think is an abomination.
-31 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

January 20, 2010
Mayor Hannibal Tavares Community Center

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. REZENTS: So there is money. Maybe TARP money. They giving it out very easily -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. REZENTS: --and printing it like mad.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
AUDIENCE: ...(chuckles)...
MR. REZENTS: However, I think money can be available if you get your name on the docket
with the Federal funds, and the State and so forth, because I think that's, there's a need to
get around this Makawao congestion.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. REZENTS: And I'll be very happy to testify when you have budget hearings.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: ...(Inaudible)... And we need five votes, so I need you to
express your concerns to my fellow colleagues as well.
MR. REZENTS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
MR. REZENTS: I'm sure we can do that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
MR. REZENTS: I have another cousin or two on the ... (inaudible)...
AUDIENCE: ... (chuckles and Applause)...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. And Dick Mayer to be followed by Cindy Warner.
MR. MAYER: Thank you, Council Members. I've handed out the long, legal-size pieces of
paper. On there is something you all know. It's the ordinance that governs the Maui
Island Plan. I wanna call special attention to the item I highlighted in bold down there,
4(b), Financial Element, where it says, as part of this island plan, the Financial Element
shall describe a fiscally sound financial program for identified actions and capital
improvements. And then the annual operating budget should follow that. And, in
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Appendix C of your document, you have a list of Capital Improvement Projects, and
many other things. But what we don't have is a fiscally responsible financial program.
There is no revenue indication at all. And so what I'm asking you to do is to prepare, or
ask the Department to prepare for you, a revenue plan that would match all the
expenditures for both CIP and various programs. In fact, nick, nicknamed the Maui
Island Plan, it's really a Maui Island prayer at this point.
AUDIENCE: ... (chuckles)...
MR. MAYER: Because it will not be a reality unless we know that there's money to implement
it. So what could you do? One of the things you should do is with regard to the CIP
infrastructure, all the various facilities, I would urge you to write and contact
each of the department directors and ask them to determine their 20-year CIP and major
equipment needs, assuming the population growth, consistent with the Maui Island Plan,
resident and ale facto population projections. Now I say resident de facto because some
departments, for example Parks Department, they often serves visitors more than almost
residents with all the beach parks and, and other facilities so we need to consider both.
Each director should consider and report on the expected costs of previously deferred
projects that to meet just existing needs, such as the traffic we just talked about,
replacement of outdated and no longer useful facilities and major equipment. For
example, water pumps that regularly will have to be replaced in the County Water
System. That's not in the plan. New projects to accommodate expected growth that's
being outlined in the various urban growth boundaries. They should be asked to verify
the information in the draft Maui Island Plan. I would urge you at some point to get each
of the department heads up to be able to state on the record that this plan will meet their
needs for the next 20 years as well as the existing needs. We at the GPAC never had that
opportunity to really grow department heads, and some of us asked that a fiscally
responsible plan be developed. Although this Maui Island Plan, although this is the Maui
Island Plan, the CIP needs and revenue needs to accommodate Molokai and Lanai should
not be ignored. I mean in other words don't just prepare a plan and say, oh well, okay.
Because there will be needs on Molokai and Lanai in addition to what the Maui Island
Plan. So those at least have to be thought of, as what the County can afford over the next
several decades. Also, State CIP is a mixed bag here. There are a few projects on that
list that are State projects, but most of the State projects have been left off. Either put
them all in or leave 'em all out. Don't have it mixed because it's a false impression. I
would urge you to actually try and include schools, libraries, State highways, harbors,
parks, prison, hospital, airports, bridges. Those are many State projects and we have to
know if we're gonna add on 20, 30, 40, 50,000 more people over the next 20 years, will
the State have the money to supply that infrastructure which we depend on? The County
does not have that kind of money. Does the State? Lastly, let me just add with regard to
a couple of the comments made earlier this evening with regards to Pukalani Triangle and
the Kauhale Project down below, it's the same owner, the same developer who owns both
parcels of land. And that's something you should be aware of at both ends. That land
that, the Pukalani Triangle, when Maui Land & Pine did their EIS, showed very high
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levels of chemical pollution on that land and I have a copy of that EIS if you wish to see
that. There is, the reason why that was taken by the GPAC and put into, was reduced
down from what the original plan was and why the Planning Commission, also we
needed to buy an open space link between Pukalani and Upcountry and the high school,
and that was why that area was kept green. With regard to Piiholo South, I would just
urge you, if you do expand the urban growth boundary around that area to include
essentially the urbanized area where they gonna be having the housing. The whole upper
part of that property is going to be, supposedly walking trails and other things of that sort
that should not be included within any kind of a rural growth boundary that you might
designate around that. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Dick.
AUDIENCE: ...(Applause)...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you.
MR. MAYER: Thank you, gentlemen.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Cindy Warner, to be followed by David Lindsay.
MS. WARNER: Good evening, Council Members and Staff of the Planning Department. Thank
you all for being here. Just a couple of things. I'm Cindy Warner. I'm here in regards to
Piiholo South. . . .(change tape, start 2B). . . One thing I wanted to just...as a
housekeeping item and that was on one of the documents that we gave you yesterday.
I've made a, addition to that, that gives more clarification which Jocelyn Perreira
requested, and that is that in our meetings with the Makawao Main Street Association,
and have had this piece of paper handed to the Staff so that'll be passed around to you.
We've had multiple presentations during the past year at Makawao meetings, and have
presented and discussed the project with the ...(inaudible)...community at publicly
noticed meetings on two occasions. And, and the main point is the input from those
meetings were incorporated into our revised designs. And that bridges the gap of where
I wanted to go with the many of the issues with traffic was that originally we were
thinking of part senior housing and part single-family dwellings. And through meetings
with Makawao Main Street and Olinda Community Association, we heard loud and clear
that people were really concerned about traffic in Makawao, as you've mentioned,
Chairperson Baisa. And I've lived in Olinda for about three decades, almost three
decades, off of Piiholo Road for the first, almost ten years and then off of Olinda Road
for the last 20 years with a couple year exception when I lived up at Keokea, and I missed
Olinda too much I had to come back. But anyway, I'm, acknowledge and realize that
there is a traffic issue down at Makawao Avenue especially school hours. I think whether
our project's included or not, that's something that needs to be dealt with. I don't think, I
personally don't think that our project would add a lot to that because part of it, with,
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with the direction that we've had with, with the direction that we've pursued with going
with all seniors was to address that issue. And Zach Franks, my partner met
with... (inaudible)... who's the manager with the Hale Mahaolu, next to the post office in
Makawao Town, and he asked them, asked, Zach asked Fincher about the car use and
traffic and was told that none of the residents at the Hale Mahaolu facility there have
jobs. They were all retired and they all specifically avoided traveling in their cars at rush
hour times. And they had the freedom and the liberty to do that. And that's what we
think will be the case with our residents in both the Hale Mahaolu facility and the private
cottages. Lastly, a friend of mind and an associate as Gerrianne Sakamoto, she's the wife
of Clyde Sakamoto, the chancellor at MCC and she couldn't be here tonight but she
asked me to read this, and I'll be really quick 'cause I know I'm running out of my time.
But here, this is written by Gerrianne. Testimony in favor of senior housing in Makawao
Town. I'm speaking to you tonight as an Upcountry senior (somewhere over 55), as a
daughter, and as a business woman with elderly clients and friends. A number of years
ago, when my mother was alive, and living on her own, we had planned to move her to
the Hale Mahaolu in Pukalani that was being developed. My own home had several sets
of stairs was inappropriate for her physically. The Gardens at Upcountry and the small
condo homes on the Pukalani Golf Course also have lots of stairs. When the Hale
Mahaolu project didn't go forward, we were at a loss as to where a senior could age in
place Upcountry. My mother has since passed away, and now my husband and I are
looking at those same stairs everyday and wondering where we should move so that we
too might age in place. In my real estate practice I've watched as my clients struggled
with the need to move to a senior friendly house or a condo. For most who are not in a
position to build a new home that leaves them with few choices, all of them
down-country. I'm gonna skip back to the next paragraph here. When I served on the
Upcountry Citizens Advisory Committee, I can honestly say we thought our work would
be a living thing changing with the needs of our community. I can remember County
planners telling us, if you aren't sure what to do with this area, then just put it into Ag
and we can always change it later. Why does zoning that was put into place many years
ago when no one had yet thought of senior housing be held at a higher regard than the
foresight of a builder who listens to the growing senior community here? Please look at
what is possible. Please ask, how can we make this work for Makawao? Please look at
the community plan and the zoning maps as working documents instead of roadblocks in
a rapidly changing community. Thank you, Gerrianne G. Sakamoto. So that's all. If
anybody has any questions, I'm happy to entertain.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Not with a question but, is it possible for you to
leave that testimony so we can get copies of it?
MS. WARNER: Of Gerrianne's?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Gerri's, yeah, please.
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MS. WARNER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I appreciate that.
MS. WARNER: I, I will leave a copy for everybody.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you.
MS. WARNER: Okay, good.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Any other questions?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Question.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Whether it be during busy times or not, senior citizens do
drive.
MS. WARNER: That's true.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So cars will be impacted in this community. But more
than that, my, my concern is you've heard Members talk about water in your community.
How tested is this water that you say you have? And has the, have you communicated
that with the Water Director? And does he indeed approve of it?
MS. WARNER: Thank you, Councilperson Wayne Nishiki. Great question, and I'm glad you
asked. The well that we drilled over a year ago supplies 1.728 million gallons per day.
We drilled it and cased it with concrete casing all the way down. We had it tested by
certified labs on the mainland that they, our consultant, Mink and Yuen, who, who's also
the consultant for the Water Department sent their water supply to for testing. It tested at
totally pure, no contaminants or pesticides. So it came back clean on all counts. And
yes, we have communicated at great length and great detail with the Department of Water
Supply. They have our, all our test results. We made specific engineering drawings of
our well for them. We've, we're very open to further discussions with the Water
Department.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So, so, yeah, I, because I am privy to some information
in regards to the concern for the firm water and also I don't think the Water Director has
really bought into it. Let me, let me address a concern that we have and, and you've
heard citizens that have said that people that live here right now are faced with a water
shortage. How much water will your project take?
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MS. WARNER: A very small percentage of what we have accommodated.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: How much water will your project take?
MS. WARNER: Probably, I, I would say under 150,000 gallons a day.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. And, and so if, I guess maybe some of us are into deal
making. I surely am. We've got people Upcountry that are on the water list.
MS. WARNER: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Have you concerns about this in regards to, I'm not saying that
all your elderly will be people that are now living in this community Upcountry. But
maybe some will not be. And I think that those of us that perhaps live Upcountry may be
concerned that a developer can come in, develop the water source, and then spring this on
the community and, and they living there well. We've got people on the water list that
have been waiting with their families, born and raised here, Gladys included, and cannot
develop. So what is your willingness to deal with the County and maybe this Council to,
to allot some of that water for people waiting on the Upcountry Water List?
MS. WARNER: We have an absolute willingness. And we, we've, we've had meetings, we've
had meetings with Councilperson Victorino. He, he's aware of us wanting to work with
the, the Director Jeffrey Eng. And we've had number of meetings with Mr. Eng. And so
we absolutely are open. We're, we feel like we have an incredible asset. We, we just
happen to get really lucky. The well across the street from us was the opposite and...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I just hate to see you selling this water, to perhaps,
million-dollar homes that you may be able to get more water from -MS. WARNER: No we don't...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --and more money from. That's my concern.
MS. WARNER: No. We would rather work with the County and supply some much needed
water for meeting the needs of the, the waiting list.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, and, and Mr. Chairman, I just wanted to ask that question
without pursing this any further, but we'll be looking forward to this discussion. Thank
you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. Any other questions, Members? Okay. Seeing
none.
MS. WARNER: Thank you.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. David Lindsay -AUDIENCE: ...(Applause)...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --followed by John Naylor.
MR. LINDSAY: Thank you for the taking time to hear. I, my credentials, I was born in Kula
Hospital, 74 years ago. ...(chuckles)...
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ...(chuckles)...
MR. LINDSAY: And we've owned the property at the top of Piiholo and Olinda Roads for,
before the war. So, one, I, I support the senior center idea. I really do. We're at 74,
living way up in Olinda, which I love dearly, the slope is getting kinda hard to climb.
...(chuckles)... Going down and pulling the trees and stuff like that, yeah, so. We're
starting to look, have to look at future care for ourselves. We've both, my wife and I,
both have been through the process of trying to help our parents and Cathy's presently in
that, in that ... (inaudible)... right now. And she will not leave, yeah. So we're gonna,
we'd like to find a place like that where we can land and not be a burden on our children.
And of course I wanna stay here. ...(chuckles)... But we're looking all over now, so we
have to, yeah. So I'd like to really strongly support that issue. As far as the traffic goes,
there's a sore point. I was president after Lan, and, but we, we brought up the issue of
the speed bumps on...
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Miha.
MR. LINDSAY: Not Miha.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Hana.
MR. LINDSAY: Hana Road. Yeah, I used to go that way when I came down from. I, I come
down Olinda instead of Piiholo because Piiholo the bumps is, you've already heard me
on that issue. But bad enough on Olinda, but we come down, I come down Olinda and I
used to go across that way to save going through Makawao. And I'll be honest with you,
I'd rather go through Makawao because no more bumps. So if, if that issue were cleaned
up, somehow, 1 don't know how. But if you can clean that up so that that's a smooth
travel through there. At least a lot of people, and the, and the traffic on Olinda is getting
pretty heavy, I don't know where they're going or why but it's, it's, of course I use to
drive Piiholo when it was a dirt road, yeah. So it's, it's, anything's a bit worse than that.
But yeah, I, I, I'm supporting of the senior project and would like to stay home. Mahalo.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you.
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AUDIENCE: ... (Applause)...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, any questions? Seeing none, John Naylor, followed
by Jocelyn Perreira.
MR. NAYLOR: Hi, thank you so much for being here tonight. And my name is John Naylor.
Let's see if I can adjust this first. How's that? So thank you for being here tonight. My
name is John Naylor and I'm, been calling Maui home for about 27 years. I live in
Makawao. And first off I gotta say show me the water. I think that's such an important
thing, having lived up here and gone through so many droughts. And conserving water
year round, you know, I don't want you guys to think because you happen to come up
when it's raining, that this is what it's like up here because it's not. It has been very dry
this winter. It rained some in, what, early November and it's been pretty dry. So, don't
let this throw you off.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ...(chuckles)...
MR. NAYLOR: You know, there's a lot of water. I'm, I'm concerned about the stream flow.
You know, I think stream flow, I think the Hawaiians, the people who wanna grow taro
should, should be able to do that. I know there's a lot of water leaking up in the flumes
up there. I've walked and it's been a number of years but there's water leaking all over.
We've got ag closing all over, and yet we don't seem to have water. I'm kind of, I
wonder who's hoarding it or hiding it or, where, where is it? Letting it drip away. So I
think those are some of the concerns of living Upcountry. I'm concerned about the fast
tracking of communities like the one in Maalaea, and Olowalu for instance. I think
we've heard about traffic concerns up here and I have those as well. But what, what's
gonna happen down there? It's just, seems that it'll be a huge bottleneck. It'll lose view
planes, open space. So I wanna, I'd, I'd like to mention that while you're up here. We
need transportation corridors while there is open space. And I think that's a valid point
up here. I had to take my cat to the vet. Although I live across the street from a vet, my
vet's up in Kula. And I called him early in the morning and got him, he said come right
now. I got in my car, and I got caught in traffic up by Five Trees, and it was
unbelievable. If I had waited probably 40 minutes, I could've gotten to the vet faster than
I did by sitting in that traffic. And you know, it's Seabury Hall, it's Kalama, it's, you
know, the school up there. It's all those schools and all these roads converging up there.
It's really something that needs to be looked at. And I think that, you know, Makawao,
one thing you could do, I think would be a cheap quick fix, is put a right-turn lane on
Haleakala, Makawao Avenue onto Haleakala Highway. How about just, you know when
you have a little extra asphalt, just throw it in, in to that pot-holed area. Even though we
don't own the land, you know just do it.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (chuckles)...
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MR. NAYLOR: Smooth it out, make it a little bit easier for people to get out of here. So, and
you know grandparents do take their kids to the, their grandchildren to school. So there
will be those times when parents, can you watch the kids? And, you know, yeah, I wanna
watch the kids. And they gotta get up and take their kids to school. Although I'm very
much in favor of the idea of aging in place, and, you know, I'm, I'm gonna be a senior
one of these days. I'd like to stay on Maui, and I'd like to be Upcountry. I'm concerned
about legalize. I've heard a rumor, and I don't know whether it's true, but I've heard a
rumor that there's a, a motion to change some wording in the GPAC, for instance from
"shall" to "may". And I'm not an attorney, but it just seems like that opens it up to, well
maybe we'll do it, maybe we won't. I, so I'm concerned about that kind of wording in
the, in the plan. I guess that's about it. Although I say sustainability for Maui. Think
about that, and always. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, John.
AUDIENCE: ... (Applause)...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, questions? Okay. Seeing none, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Hang on.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Oh, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: John, I just wanna tell you that, you know, I'm, I'm like you. I
really thought when, you know, we had the State DOT come on the radio on Tuesday
mornings, Brennon Morioka comes on the radio and I asked him about that right turn.
And I said, can't you do something? And I think Member Molina already has been
involved in this for a long time and as he mentioned, like it would seem really simple to
just fill the pothole with some asphalt cause we all go around it anyway. That's if you're
in a hurry and you have a chance you just go on the, in the potholes and go. They said it
was very complicated because they would have to work with the County because it's an
intersection of a County road and a State Highway. And there has to be land pitches from
Maui Land & Pine, because they own the pineapple land on the corner and it turns into a
major, major undertaking. And remember, this is, I'm in my fourth year on the Council.
MR. NAYLOR: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And no progress that I know of. So we'll just have to keep, you
know, pushing but these things are very frustrating. They don't happen easily. Thank
you.
MR. NAYLOR: Thank you, Gladys.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Any other questions? Okay, thank you, John. The last
testifier is Jocelyn Perreira.
MS. PERREIRA: Good evening, everyone. Thank you for being here. Before you start the
clock, Calvin Shibuya was supposed to be here to discuss the Makawao nine issues
related to the Piiholo Project. I cannot do it in my own. I wonder if you'll indulge me,
after I give my testimony to give the word for Calvin. I hope you will do that because
he's recovering from surgery. Now you can start the time. My name is Jocelyn Perreira,
representing the Tri-Isle Main Street Resource Center and advocating for the small towns
in Maui County with historic fabric. We shared information with County planners,
GPAC, the Planning Commission in comprehensive reports, providing specific
comments, maps, recommendations on several occasions, in support of the preservation
and revitalization of traditional small towns, and appropriate new towns and in-fill
development. We strongly believe that the urban and rural growth boundaries will
impact both those in and outside the affected area. We have done our best to fortify the
process following it for nearly four years now. We note that this has been a true
community-based effort that has had comprehensive long-term work of grassroot
organizations supported by the team of professionals from a . . . (inaudible). . . of career
paths. We all feel that all, all citizens need to be fully engaged in this process in land use
decisions with the potential to impact their property values, lifestyle, and future family
aspirations and not just being told this is best for you. This is why our organization
stresses the importance of community plan process where specifics can be researched,
explored, discussed with respective communities and the people directly affected sitting
at the table. The integrity of the existing community plans must be upheld until to such
time each respective community has had an opportunity to make known its updated
positions which could result in the same directives, or require revisions based upon most
recent information available and prevailing circumstances that respects local autonomy,
home rule, and the protection of grandfather rights. Boundaries and resulting
implementing actions must be finalized based on a process of integrity, fairness, and a
blueprint of where we decide to live, desire versus affordability, lifestyle changes
affecting how we live, what resources we preserve and protect, the opportunities
remaining for meaningful employment and upward mobility for our families so we can
appreciate the resources. Working, we are working currently through community-based
issues and projects and are in support thus far in and in discussions with Pukalani Town
Center. We're waiting on Saint Joseph's Church and School, Parish, to, to give their
opinion relative to the Piiholo South project before Main Street gives its position, official
position. Property across the Veterans Cemetery, very concerned that these are not
cluster houses. They're intended to be ranch style homes and Jordan Santos, whose
mother is sick, couldn't be here to tell you that but she will tell you at some point. The
H'Poko Project, we feel needs to be there. The Waihee self determination, for the
Waihee community through comprehensive community strategic plan that they're hoping
to do. Wailuku in-fill development and support of Hanzawas' rural service center.
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Now if I can give Calvin's. We worked very closely and to the credit of the people doing
the Piiholo South, LLC. There are nine issues that we had to face when the project first
came. First one was design. This was, this is a much, much improved project from what
was initially put forth and we have to credit them for that. The issues involving this
project that was of concern that we've had is traffic, number one, numero uno.
Pedestrian sidewalk safety, of course the impacts, potential impacts to the church and
school. The aging in place concept which we introduced and told them to try to look at is
one that we do embrace; however, we do feel every community should have an age in
place concept area and not just have all age in place put in one particular area. Recycling
family homes for truly affordable homes. That's the truly affordable homes. The whole
idea and intention of the people of Makawao that we talked to was they want to live in
Makawao where they lived all their lives. They wanna be able to give their homes to
their families and have the opportunity to go live in a retirement village but then have
their homes recycled to their children so their children can stay in Makawao, and they can
stay in Makawao. So there's a concern about Makawao first. Likewise, water is
concerned about the sustainability of the well and where the additional water goes
because per Jordan Santos, hey that list, people waiting a long time and we wanna make
sure Makawao get, if we going take more water from Makawao, they want Makawao
people on the list first. Park . . . they wanted the park to be further down. They were
concerned about safety issues relative to the school and the paths, and people walking
through paths and what not. And we discussed all of that with the, with Mr. Franks. And
also the concern about the connection between Makawao Town customers and whatnot,
traipsing through perhaps the school grounds and the church grounds going back and
forth. And that was why we were really pleased when they said they would do a
sidewalk that comes down Piiholo. That was one of the requests from Makawao Main
Street that we have that sidewalk. And then of course the church, we feel which is the
immediate neighbor, needs to be respectfully have an opportunity to discuss this with
them, because they do have events and so on and so forth and we wanna, and they have a
new concept going to try to save the school. And we wanna make sure that they have
every opportunity to and a proposed development is not something that's gonna make
people feel like, oh well maybe the kids shouldn't go or whatever. So they just need the
opportunity. I feel that this is a project that has merit. I think Makawao Main Street has
been very good about being fair and evenhanded and working through the issues with
them. And I know Calvin Shibuya feels the, the final thing I'll say, is that they want to
be sure that they see something in writing, so that the initial concept presented is not
changed down the line, that you're coming in and saying that you're gonna do this, and
somewhere down the line, it gets changed to something else. And that's the final word
on that. Thank you for this opportunity.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: ... (Applause)...
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, any questions for the testifier? Okay. Seeing none,
thank you.
MS. PERREIRA: Thank you very much.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: We have one more person that has signed up. Rosemary
Robbins.
MS. ROBBINS: Good evening, everybody. I appreciate the opportunity to be here tonight.
Welcome to my neck of the woods. Tonight, people that I haven't had the opportunity to
work with yet, but Darlene and David and James and Ellen and John all spoke about the
concern about water up here, not only the quantity of it but the quality of it. Dick spoke
about the, God spare us, condition of that land there in the Triangle. Those of us who
worked on the Upcountry Water Oversight Committee went into that heavy duty. It's
scary as all get out. And also the stuff down just below here. Same developer, same
potential acceptance of what the heck is on that land. Look out. Okay. So I know you
don't want anybody injured but people have been injured by some of the stuff up here.
You're hearing from one of them today. Too much cancer out there. Too little follow
through and in view of the 1988 budget, the Safe Drinking Water Revolving Fund from
the State was willing to fund 60 projects. First worst on the Big Island, second worst, on
the Big Island, third worst the Piiholo Treatment Plant. You had documentation handed
to you by me and others that indicates how dreadful the water initial area is that we're
getting coming around in these flumes that were mentioned here tonight that are in pretty
tough shape too. So if you've got lousy water going into the Piiholo Treatment Plant,
that plant has to grow like fury in order to try and outdo the stuff that's been in there.
That was in the '08 Safe Drinking Water Revolving Fund. You've got like 20 years to
pay that back at maybe 3 percent at the cost of being able to take that water there. The
County of Maui chose to submit a help us out deal to the Safe Drinking Water Division
and it went to the other side, up to the Kaanapali side. We still haven't addressed that
here at Piiholo. So that's the water that's surface water and then we're dealing with the
well water. And I was very glad to hear, wherever she is, that was more than happy to
get you information and work with the County in terms of that well water. And when we
were all together at a meeting recently for your Committee on the water, Mike, we had
Jeff Eng there saying that, that well at Piiholo South had not been approved yet by the, by
him. So, so we know that as of this date that hasn't happened. This is good news to hear
that Piiholo South is willing to work with the County on that. So I really appreciate that
and whoever the young lady was who mentioned that. So please be careful about that.
The '08 budget has gone, '09 budget has gone. We're into the '10 budget. We still don't
have the Piiholo Water Treatment Plant being dealt with nor do we have a well to supply
us water for those of us who are living off of that water that is surface water that's
crummy. Third worst as of '08, getting worse '09, oh my god, worse than that yet in
'010. So we're hearing that there are lots of people here who are up here that are really
concerned about the water, so thank you for addressing all of that.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. Members, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Real quickly, and thank you. And just to let you know that
the design is being completed for the Kamole Treatment for $300 million pump and
increasing the capacity up to 8 million gallons a day. So that's being worked on right
now. And I, I don't think I've let you know that but it's in the 2009-2010 Budget. And
so that money has been encumbered and they're working on that right now. So, just to let
you know that, that is not a dead deal at that point, you know. So we're working on a
number of aspects and this is some of that. But I don't wanna take much time. Give me
a call and we'll sit down and talk story about all of this. Okay. Thank you.
MS. ROBBINS: I will and that's, that's encouraging to hear that. Thank you very much for that,
keeping in mind that Kamole and Piiholo are two different deals.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. ROBBINS: Yeah, thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you very much. At this time, Rosemary was the
last testifier that had signed up. Is there anyone else in the audience that has not signed
up and has not testified that would like to participate? Seeing none, then if there are no
objections, I will close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
.END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY..

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: . . .(change tape, start 3A). .. Okay. Thank you. We are
going to take a brief...five minutes, Members? A brief five-minute recess and then
following the recess, the Department of Planning will make a presentation on the Maui
Island Plan that relates to Makawao, Pukalani, and Kula. So recess. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:

8:09 p.m.

RECONVENE: 8:15 p.m.

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: . . . (gavel). . . Okay. At this time the, the Chair would like to
turn over this portion of tonight's meeting to the Department of Planning, and Mr. David
Michaelson will be talking about your community area. Go ahead, Mr. Michaelson.
MR. MICHAELSON: Thank you very much, Sol. First of all, thank you all for coming. I live
Upcountry, so I'm probably more a little more emotionally attached to this portion of the
plan than other portions of the island. Just one observation, it's, it's refreshing to hear
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your comments. As you know, I travel all over the island and we just do things
differently up here. And we also tend to have a sense of humor about it which is very
refreshing in my line of work. What I'd like to do, I have quite a challenge in front of
me. I'm gonna try to describe a five-year program, a very complicated project, in ten
minutes. Alright, so buckle in, we're gonna cover a whole lot of ground. What I'd like
to do is first of all give you a sense of some of the philosophical underpinnings of the
plan. And that is not only for Upcountry, but for the island as a whole. How we went
about the project, particularly the directed growth boundaries, and then talk very briefly
about what the boundaries will ultimately look like for Upcountry, and then I'll stick
around if you have any questions. We have maps on the walls that describe the, the
GPAC recommendations, the Planning Committee's, Commission's recommendations as
well as the Director's. And there's some subtle differences and if you wanna talk about
why those differences occurred I'd be glad to help, help you understand those. First of
all, we had a, a testifier just a little awhile ago, I think he was, it was about ten minutes
ago and he, he talked about sustainability. And that is an underpinning of this plan. And
you hear people kick around the word sustainability all the time, right. And it always
means a little different, something a little different to each and every one of us, but from
our perspective, what it was about is that the decisions that we make today, for this plan,
shouldn't compromise future generations for enjoying what we all enjoy on Maui. And,
and that also is tracked I think through all, all the elements of the plan if you read through
it. We also set the bar really high. And these are just four points that, that staff really
stuck with as we developed the plan. And one was to be bold, to take some chances, to
suggest of different ways of doing things that we've never done in the past because the
stakes are really high. And I, I say that in a, in a positive light and not a paranoid planner
light. We also wanted it to be rigorous. In other words, we wanted to use the best
information we could possibly get to develop the plan and to use that information
responsibly. And I think we've done a really, really good job of that. When you look
through the plan I think you'll see that. The, the idea of best practices that we're not the
only community that's ever done this either on the Hawaiian Islands, or in the country or
around the world. And we wanted to go out and find examples of places that are dealing
with the same issues we are and, and hopefully make this plan actually get implemented.
And finally, respecting a process. This has had an incredibly rich public participation
process, more so than any plan that I've ever worked on in my career. And we wanted to
be true to that and to listen to people. And that's why we're here tonight and why we're,
we're going all over the island. So when you look at this plan, and, and I hope you read
it. It's on the web, it's in our office, it's in the libraries. It's easy to find. But the first is
that it's gotta be comprehensive, alright. It's gotta hit all the issues, and it's gotta link
them together, to, to solve problems that we all know are out there. But it's gotta be
internally consistent, that it can't, thing's can't be fighting amongst each other. So like
something in the housing element has gotta be consistent with the transportation element,
and so on. But it's clear that the policies are clear. If policies aren't clear, if they're, if
they're ambiguous, or they're, they're hard to understand, it makes the decision-making
process really difficult. That it's, Dick Mayer hit to this point about it, that it's fiscally
responsible. I think we've laid out the cost of this plan. We've laid out a way where we
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can finance things differently than we've done in the past. And finally that the debate is
honest, it's transparent, everything is occurring in a public setting. Now the directed
growth represents a very dramatic shift of how we make land use decisions on Maui.
That's what these maps are. And when we originally started, the, the legislation said we
had to have rural boundaries, and urban boundaries, and that was it. And what we found,
and I'll, I'll walk you through this, is that it was more complicated than that. There aren't
just urban and rural areas, right. There's urban, Wailuku, Kahului. But Makawao is not
urban. So we created another classification for that. And we, we created two others.
These are, this is the contents of the plan itself. They're like chapters, all these elements
are on the web. And the way the web page is structured, if you just wanna read one
element, you can do that. You don't have to leap through the whole document. This is a
very traditional way. The one thing that is a little different is monitoring and evaluation.
If plans, if you don't chart a course, and then figure out if you're getting there or not, the
plans generally don't work. So there's a very rich way we've got a set of indices that
we're using to see how we're doing on the plan. Each, each element is organized the
same way. It has background information, where we've been, where we are, where we'll
end up going, without policy intervention. It has challenges and opportunities and I'll
take you through one slide very briefly about the challenges and opportunities that we
identified for Upcountry. It has goals, objectives, and policies. It has an action plan
which says what we have to do to actually implement this either legislatively or how we
do business in the Planning Department. And finally there are a series of maps. There
are two kinds of maps in the document. The first are called background maps. They're
not policy per se. They're existing environmental conditions, existing employment
density relationships, a lot of threatened and endangered species data, there's coral reef
data. And then there's another set of maps that do in fact affect how we do business and
how decisions get made. And this is an example of one map. We've got a, a program
where we realize our coral reefs are disappearing. We know the conditions of those coral
reefs and we know the locations of the reefs that still might have a chance. Some of 'em
frankly, will never come back. And this is an example of a map where we've identified
drainage systems that relate to those coral reefs and will develop policies down the road
to do that. There are two documents that are out there. And I think both of 'ern frankly
are in the library if that's where you try to chase down a hard copy. There's one
document that we had to submit legislatively. It was a requirement where we submitted
the GPAC recommendations, the Planning Commission's recommendations, and the
Director's recommendations. It's all policy, alright. It's all policy tables. The second
document is something that we just produced. It is the plan. And that's the plan that, that
the Chairman held up and, and we have copies as well. That has all the narrative, in other
words, all the background information, all the background mapping, all the directed
growth strategy. It's like the, it's one stop shopping. And that's the document that, that
the Council will, will be working on. Briefly, these are sort of the highlights. I won't
walk you through them. I think the, this is what we heard here. This is what you folks
were communicating to us. So thankfully the issues that bubbled to the top I think we hit,
which means we're doing our job. We also had some sort of guiding land use principles
which drove the Directed Growth Strategy. Again, I think they're what you to expect
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when you, when you go to public meeting and hear testimony about lifestyle, culture,
sustainable land use planning, working agricultural landscapes and, and, and retaining the
prime ag land on the island, environmental sensitivity, as well as public facilities and
infrastructure. Four themes sort of are the umbrella for the plan. The first was we heard,
wherever we went, we said limit development in East Maui and Northwest Maui. Protect
our ag resources, particularly Upcountry. That the directed growth should push
development where it can be fiscally responsible and environmentally responsible, where
infrastructure is in place, where there's roads, schools, shopping, to avoid sprawl. And
finally, that within this urban growth areas, the places should be livable. Alright, they
should be mixed use. They should be walkable. They should have services. They
should have a variety of housing types. All that stuff that I'm sure you've heard. We
also looked backwards. Alright, we've developed a series of maps that helped us
understand how these places have grown historically to help us understand maybe how
they should grow in the future. I'll just take you through four sequences real quick. Just
kind of pick your favorite spot. Makawao is my favorite which is right there, you see,
you see the little T. That's what it was in 1933, '55, '78, 2004. Pretty, pretty interesting
little dynamic. It was really nothing more than the crossroads, right, so the challenges
that when we came up here and we did a charrette. I don't know if any of you attended
that. We also did a series of workshops up here. GPAC had meetings up here as well.
These are what bubbled up to the top. The idea that we had to protect ag lands, not just
for productivity, but for view plains right. We all cherish what we see as we drive
through our car. That we should maintain a separation between communities. Pukalani
and, and Makawao for example should not grow into one urban land mass. The, there's
some pedestrian issues up here in towns, and as new development comes online, they
should, they should respect that and help us improve it. But there's a lack of housing
choices. I'll give you a real quick number, 78 percent of every house on Maui, is a
single-family house. Not everyone can afford a single-family house. Not everyone
wants to live in a single-family house. So that, that sort of gets into the mixed use. So
does opportunities. We can, we can get our hands around this stuff as we grow. One is
to provide an opportunity for more diverse housing. And you've heard examples tonight
from the development community of how they can deal with that. That we use the
Directed Growth Strategy to make a more predictable land use pattern as, as growth
unfolds on the island. And we can maintain that separation. There's what's called an
Upcountry Greenway Plan. And, and this is one map that came out of it. It's a great
plan. The Maui Island Plan is trying to get that implemented. And finally, that we can
ensure that growth is efficient and cost effective so that there's not undue burden on
existing taxpayers as these places grow. I'm not gonna take you, this is the methodology
that we use for directed growth. In a nutshell, what we did was created an inventory of
existing data. Some of it was environmental, some of it was socio-economic. And then
from that we said okay. How, how much growth can we expect in, in 2030? We looked
at how many units were on the ground now, wow many entitled units were out there.
And what was left is what we had to incorporate in, into the directed growth boundaries.
There's four kinds of boundaries, all of which are on these maps for Upcountry. The first
is urban town. Right, Pukalani is an urban place. And there's an urban boundary for
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that. There's also something in between rural and urban. And we call them country
towns. The, in my mind they're the gems of Maui. Makawao is one of them, Paia is one
of them, Hana is one of them. And we have a set of policies that are in the document that
reflect the unique needs of those sorts of places. We are what's called rural residential.
There's a lot of rural residential up here. It was really based on the prior community plan
designation of rural. That, almost without exception, that boundary was masked. And
finally there's these kind of funky places like Keokea right, and Waiakoa is a good
example where you have small commercial, like Grandma's, right, mixed with
residential, and interspersed with agriculture. It's a different kind of place. And it
suggests different policies to retain what makes it special. And we're laying the
groundwork for the community plans. And there were several instances where the GPAC
sort of started kind of micromanaging places. And we pulled them back. And we said
that's a community plan issue. And I think you understand what I mean by that. This is
flying at an island-wide altitude. So this is the boundaries that, these are the growth areas
that have been identified for Makawao and Pukalani. And you'll notice they're in
orange. They're very tight to the existing urban core. And that was on purpose for all the
reasons 1 think, I think you heard in the past and you'll see in the document. The rest of
the boundaries are really framing areas. It, it sort of a containment strategy to avoid
sprawl. The mapping for Upcountry stayed pretty consistent through all three of those
review bodies. Alright, well, two review bodies and our staff recommendations. Again
they're on the wall. They're in the document. Also if you wanna just look at the maps
themselves, they're on the website. You can go to mauicounty.gov . Go down to the
Long Range Planning Department. And they're all there. So that concludes my
presentation. If, if you have any questions for me, I'll stick around for awhile. Again,
the document's on the web. It's at the libraries. This is more the beginning of the
process, if you will. The Council has a year, as Sol pointed out, to review that. So you
have plenty of chances to participate. You can certainly call myself or my staff if you
have any questions about the plan. And hopefully at the conclusion of this, we're looking
forward to coming back and helping you do your community plan.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, David, for you presentation. Members, do
you have any questions for the Planning Department? Okay. Seeing none, then at this
time the Chair would recommend that this item be deferred.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.

(Excused:

JJ)

ACTION: DEFER PENDING FURTHER DISCUSSION.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: No objections. Okay. Before we adjourn tonight's meeting,
then just a brief announcement. I wanna let the community here in Upcountry know that
we are gonna continue our Planning Committee meetings. We are scheduled to go to the
Kihei Community Center on Monday, January 25 t1i . The Planning Committee will also
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be meeting at Hana's Helene Hall on Thursday, January 28 th . And both meetings will
start at 6:00 p.m. I wanna just say mahalo and thank you to all of you who have come out
tonight to give us your thoughts about the Maui Island Plan and we appreciate your input.
So thank you for being here. This meeting is now adjourned. . . . (gavel).. .

ADJOURN: 8:30 p.m.

APPROVED:

SOL P. KAHO'OHALAHALA, Chair
Planning Committee
pc:min:100120

Transcribed by: Joy Tesoro
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